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" “The village of Cross Creek
'1olds volumes of history. Reli-
zion and education brought high
standards of living very early to
he country folk who chose this
1i],ltop for their dwelling place.

-Situated on a hill about five
niles southwest of Bur-
settstown, it takes its name from
he stream which drains almost
he entire township. Cross Creek
ympties into the Ohio River
lirectly across from another

tream entering the river from.

he other side. The river and the
Wwo streams form a cross, thus
joth streams are called Cross
-reek, as well as the township
ind the village.

-.The “village on the hill” was
aid out in lots by David Wilkin,
vho had bought three acres from
{enry Graham. The latter donat-
d land for the old Presbyterian
“hurch which was founded in
779 and from which many influ-
ntial individuals came. The
arly houses were erected during
sraham’s lifetime, forming the
nicleus of a 51zable country
own.

.-Cross Creek Village grew as
he decades passed and eventual-
y'became a center for trade in a
vide area. By the mid-1800s, it
oasted a post office, three
tores, a blacksmith shop, shops
or making wagons and harness-
s, boots and shoes, as well as a
otel. Professional men such as
octors, surgeons, surveyors and
thers were attracted to the vil-
age, filling the needs of the
rowing population.

.-One day in March, 1904, the
eace and tranquility of the little
illage was threatened beyond
jords. Men were at work burn-
g brush on the lot of T A Hmd-

Shortly before 2 p m., a spark
rom the burning brush was
lown to the roof of the wagon
hop and the dry shingles blazed
p almost instantly. A number of
ien attempted to extinguish the
lames but their efforts proved in
ain.

*Soon great showers of sparks
ere carried by the high wind to
djoining buildings and in a few
linutes flames broke out in the
otel. T. A. Hindman’s black-
mith shop was soon ablaze and it
as seen that all three buildings
ere doomed.

-Telephone calls for help were
nt out through the surrounding
ountry. A call was sent to Bur-
ettstown for help but they
rrived too late to be of any use.
he flames gained great head-
ray and were carried across the

destruction to the little vil-

_ing to the Cross Creek Church.

KATHRYN SLASOR

street and the Samuel Scott resi-
dence was soon ablaze. A small
tool shop was burned to the
ground. So quickly did the fire
spread that little could be saved.
Nearly all the residents of the
town moved their household
goods from. their homes so that
the main street was piled with
merchandise of every sort.

The fire was fought by means
of bucket brigades. The water
was carried from wells in buck-
ets, wash boilers, tubs and any
available vessel. With buckets
and wet blankets, the volunteer
firemen worked tirelessly, beat-
ing back the flames which threat-
ened to lick up every building in
town. At times, four or five resi-
dences were on fire at the, same
time.

The fire was finally brought
under control about 4 p.m. By
night, the whole town presented a
desolate appearance.

In some areas, all that was left
were blackened chimneys and
smoldering  ruins. About the
streets were battered wash boil-
ers, bits of broken furniture and
frayed blankets. Residents gath-
ered on the streets and discussed
the fire which had brought so

The Cross Creek Academy

Many years before the great
fire, the people saw the need for
education. The Rev. John Stock-
ton, a recent student at Princeton
Theological Seminary, immedi-
ately became interested upon his
arrival to his new pastorate in
1827.

By 1828, he had organized
what was to become the Cross
Creek Academy. For many years,
students met in homes and vari-
ous locations.

The permanent building for
the academy, and which later
would house Cross Creek Town-
ship High School, was erected in
1828 on a plot of ground belong-

This school served a two-fold
i it was an opportunity

PENNSYLVANIA FOCUS

Cross Creek survwed fire of 1904

Contributec

OLD SCHOOL TIES - This picture was taken in 1909. Those persons
appearing in the picture are, from left, Mrs. Eola Smith White; Arthur F.
Lyle, principal; Mrs. Mary White Welch; Donald Gaul; Martha Johnston;
Willa Cunningham; Myrtle Balamer Mortimer; W. Vance Walker; Oscar C.
Vance and Mrs. Clare Cooke Rea, assistant teacher.

Y .

for advanced training and study,
and for training young men for
the Christian ministry. Special
attention was given to higher
mathematics, oratorical and lit-
erary attainments. Ministers,
doctors, lawyers, and teachers
received their secondary educa-
tion in this historic school.

The academy was closed dur-
ing the Civil War and reopened in
1879. By 1896, it was realized that
a high school would better suit
the needs of the students, thus
the Cross Creek High School was
born.

This level of education contin-
ued until 1929, when the school as
such could no longer meet the
requirements that were state-

mandated. The school then
closed, but the building remained
until it was considered an eye-
sore and was torn down after
much confusion and many objec-
tions in 1935.

Even though the old building
held countless fond memories
and was dear to the hearts of
those whose lives it touched, any
movement throughout the ensu-
ing years to restore it or rebuild
it died for lack of support.

It was seen by the majority as
just an old building. But to those
who would care, it was a haunting
bit of history that could never be
revived.

(Slasor is a special correspon-
dent for the Pennsylvania Focus.)










Dillo School

The Dillo School was named for Fort Dillow, an Indian fort
built by John Dillow. The original Building was built on the Dunlap
farm, and a second school was built on an adjacent property on
land that is now owned by Josephine Savage Tarr. It is believed
the original brick building burned, and the second building was
erected in 1901. Besides being the present owner, Josephine
Savage Tarr attended Dillo School for eight years and later as a
teacher. ,

Teachers at Dillo School included Lawrence Swearingen,
Ida Campbell, Jennie Tucker, Maud Coswell, Edna McMillian,

Elsie Andrews, Leida Russell, Edith McCombs, Elizabeth Andrews,
Nellie Boyce, Anna M. Palmer Edgar Burns, Josephine Savage Tarr,
Ruth Cooley, Margaret McMillian, Martha Lance, Beryl McGee,
Martha Cully, Irene Perkins, Mrs. Hannon, Mellie McNicholas and
Mary Anderson.

Fort Vance Historical Society




























Purdy School

Purdy School was built on land owned by John McCracken. All School
property was obtained from the owners for a small token and to be used
for school purposes only. When the land was no longer needed for school
purposes, it was returned to the original owner.

Teachers who taught at Purdy School were Anna Crouse, J.R.Bable,
Fred Hood, Margaret Curry Aten, Howard Black, Florence Knapp, Ketura
Gilliland, W.e. McDonnell, E.W. Devitt, Margaret Hughes, Grace McDonnell
Cassidy, Margaret Perkins, Francis Lane Martin, James Craig, Elsie
Andrews, Ruth Arnold Herron, Sylvia Hannon, Francis Hughes, Irene
Perkins, and Anna Mae Neely.

Courtesy of Fort Vance Historical Society
























THE VANISHING ONE-ROOM SCHOOL

RUTH CELESTA MILLER

February 1971 and April 1971
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